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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “financial

statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, its loss and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143 (10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the

financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note (43) to the financial statements of the Company, which currently is
contesting the cancellation order issued by Airport Authority of India, Nagpur (‘AAIN’) which
currently is contesting the cancellation order issued by Airport Authority of India, Nagpur (‘AAIN’)
and revalidation of the original No Objection Certificate (‘NOC’) issued by AAIN for permission of
maximum permissible height of the residential buiiding at its project in Nagpur. Further, the Appellate
Committee of Ministry of Civil Aviation has rejected the appeal of the subsidiary company and
instructed the Airport operator to initiate action as per Aircraft (Demolition of Obstructions caused by
buildings and tree, etc.) Rule 1994. The Company had obtained a stay on the demolition order from the
Honorable High Court of Bombay (Nagpur Bench). Considering the acronautical survey report,
obstacle Hmitation study report and the legal opinion obtained by the subsidiary company, no
adjustments have been made, in respect of any write down in the carrying value of inventories
aggregating to Rs 30,043.37 lakhs, provision towards expected demolition cost, and interest payable to
customers on cancellation of bookings, in these financial statements as at 31 March 2022. Our opinion

is not modified in respect of this matter.

ﬂ Registered Office:

B 5H# & Co. {a partnership firm with Registration No. BAG1223] converted into B S R & Co. LIP 14th Floor, Central 8 Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesca Center,
{a Limited Liability Partnership with LiP Registration No. AAB-8181} with effect from Cctober 14, 2013 Western Express Higheray, Goregaon (East}, Murnbai - 400063
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not

include the financial staterments and our auditors’ report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors” Responsibility for the firancial statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134 (5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controfs that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management
either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do

SO.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors® Responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

g
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal controf.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness

of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern hasis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. [If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify

our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repoit.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
CORnCertl.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

M
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(&)

(©

(d

()

B

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by

this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the wriiten representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

and
with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the

financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a)

b)

c)

g

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

d) {(iy The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 44 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entitics, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

v directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)

or
v provide any puarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries,

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 44 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall:
= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or
= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (if) of Rule 11 (e)
contain any material mis-statement.

¢) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197 (16) of the
Act, we report that;

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Comipany, the Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration and
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197 (16) which
are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

MPodiwalle
habaett iy
Manst Pardiwala

Mumbai Partner
28 May 2022 Membership No: 108511

UDIN: 2210851 LAJUCFW4501
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022

(Referred to in Paragraph I under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section our
report of even date)

(D) (2)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment

Property.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i}a)}(B) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment including Investment property by which all property.
plant and equipment including investment properties are verified annuatly. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovabie
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the Note 4 of the financial statements are held in the name of

the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any bemami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property

Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company inventory includes construction work in progress accordingly the requirements

(&

(i)

under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable for construction work in progress.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

X
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022
{Continued)

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee
or security as specified under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. In respect of the investments
made by the company, the provisions of section 186 of the Act have been compiied with.

(iv)

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for any of the
activities carried out by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

)

(vii) (2) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Professional tax,
Property tax, Cess and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the
hooks of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax
and Income-tax have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities,
though there have been slight delays in a few cases. As explained to us, the Company did not
have any dues on account of wealth tax, Custom duty and Employees’ State Insurance.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident fund, Professional tax, Property tax, Income-tax, Cess and other
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from

the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Income-tax, Sales tax,
Service Tax, Value added tax or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on

account of any dispute, except as stated below:

(viii)

{Rs in lakhs)
Name of the | Nature of the Amount of Amount under | Period fo which Forum wheye
statute dues demand under dispaute not the amount dispute is
dispute deposited relates pending
(Rs. In lakhs) {Rs. In lakhs)
Income Tax Income-tax 1.92 - AY 2017-2018 Commissioner
Act, 1961 (interest thereon of Income-tax
not ascertainable {Appeals)
at present)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surtendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

o
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(ix) (2) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any

bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is

not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on shori-term basis have

been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obiigations of its subsidiaries,

associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotrnent or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has

been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢} We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

2
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2022

(Continued)

(xit) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) a to ¢ of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our

opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period

(xv)

(xvi}(a)

under audit,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to ifs
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

(©)

(D

(xvit)

(xviii)

(xix)

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of

clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicabie.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 311.94 lakhs in the current financial year and
Rs. 551.05 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of inancial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all Habilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

X2
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022
(Continued)

{xx)} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project.

Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

ANGPpaciv el
-
Mansi Pardiwala
Mumbai Partner
28 May 2022 Membership No: 108511

UDIN: 22108511AJJCFWA4501
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Hagwood
Commercial Developers Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.

2L
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directbrs of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR& Ce. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

APoncbwallo

M/—:_..
Mansi Pardiwalla
Partner

Membership No: 108511
UDIN: 2210851 1AJUCFW4501

Mumbai
28 May 2022




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Balanace sheef
as at 31 March 2022

(Cuwirency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Investment property under construction
Financial assets

Investments

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-current tax assets (net)
Other non-curretit assets
Other non-current assets

Current assefs
Inventories
Einancial assets
Investmenis
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Taotal assets

Equity and FHabilities
Eguity

Equity share capital
Other eguity

Total equity

Liahilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Total non-current liabilitics

Current liahilities
Financial lisbilities
Borrowings
Trade payabiles
Total outstanding dues to micre enterprise and small enterprise
Total cutstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprise
Other financial fiabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current finbilities

Total equity and labilities

Significant accounting policies
Notes o the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial staterments.
As per our report of even date aftached

ForBSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accownants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W- 100022

APandhiw alla
M
Magsi Pardiwalia

Pariner
Membership No: 108511

Place : Mumba: Place : Murnbai

Date : 28 May 2022

Note

oA R

E et

1i

i2
13
14

16

17
I7.1

18
19

20

27
21
22
23
24

BDIN 05151360

Date : 28 May 2022

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

34.64 56.54
8,752.00 8,752.00
3,208.54 3,138.84
4,409.63 3,570.38

83,76 80.81
4,203.32 4,150.22

19.24 17.62
1,124.94 1,086.43

71 836.07 20,861.484
33,887.69 31,136.51
42.48 -
74.74 9.31
2,83 325
21.90 2121
458.78 780.11
34,488.42 31.550.39
56,324.49 381223
1,541.50 1,541.50
19,623.60 19,074.99
21,165.10 2061649
1,773.37 176212
8.95 8.95
—1,782.32 177107
7,136.62 5.209.96

19.38 1.93

1,345,10 2,077.43

698.57 723.46
24,160.05 22,394.32
17.35 15.57
33.377.07 30,424.67
56.324.49 281223

For and on behail of the Board of Directors of




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Income
Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Cost of material consumed

Changes it inventories of work-in-progress
Employee benefifs expense

Finance cost

Depreciation expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

{Loss) before tax

Less : Tax expense:
Current tax (including of earlier vears)
Peferred tax {credit)

Total tax expenses

{Loss) for the year (A)

Other comprehensive iacome (OCH
1tems that will not be rectassified subsequently to profit or foss:

- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation
- Loss from iavestments in equity instruments measured at FVOCI

- Income tax effect on above

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (B)

Total comprehensive incomne / (foss) for the year (A-+B)

Earnings per equity share
(per equity share of nominal value Rs. 10 each)
Basic and diluted (in Rs.)

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No; [01248W/W-100022

Poudivwadln

Maunsi Pardiwalla
Partrer

Membership No: 1068511

Place ; Mumbai
Date ; 28 May 2022

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
25 139.20 7.51
13920 7.51
26 931.88 1,095,117
26 (931.88) (1,695.17)
27 65,18 5773
28 T390 295.14
29 22.29 41.21
30 310.14 205,69
473.43 599.77
{334.23) (592.26)
- (22.86)
(235.99) {180.82)
(235.99) {203.68)
(98.24) (388.58)
(0.51) 0.81
839.24 (4,243.75)
(191,89} 970.77
646.84 (3,272.17)
548,61 (3,660.75)
31
0.64) (2.52)
2
3-47

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited
CIN : U45201MH2006PTC164110

DPipa Hakani
Director
IN 07155347

u Chaturvedi
Managing Director
DIN 05151360

Place : Mumbai
Drate : 28 May 2022
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Staterment of cash flows
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

A. Cash flows from operating activities:
{Loss) before tax {334.23) (592.26)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 2229 4121
Interest expenses as per RERA erder 7145 282.14
Cormpensation as per RERA 6.30 3253
NRV Loss of Residential Project 144.17 2870
Interest on car loan - 0.40
Interest on financia? liabilities carried at amortised cost - {6.29}
Interest expense on present value of retention money - 7.08
Notional corporate guarantee expense 4.45 552
Gain on sale of Investment (2.52) -
Interest income on fixed deposits (L41) (1.22)
Operating eash flows before working capital changes {8%.50) (202.18)
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
{Increase) in inventories {207.95) (384.443
{Increase) in other financial assets (3.64) {0.45)
Decrease / {increase} in other assets 278.37 (145.64)
Increase in provisions 1.27 3.05
{Decrease) in other financial liabilities (33.02) (i.42)
{(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities (111.99) 33.92
{Decrease) in trade payables (754.63) (0.12)
Cash flows {used in) operations {961.09} (697.28)
Direct taxes paid (pet of refunds received) 1.62 0.24
Nef cash flows (used in) operating activities (A) (959.47) {697.04)
B. Cash flows from investing activities;
Payments for property, plant and equipment {8.39) 0.02
Expenditure incurred on Investment property under construction {69.70) {77.85)
(Lean given) / repayment of ioans given 0.42 0.80
Sale / (Purchase) of Investments (42.48) -
Gain on sale of Investment 2.52 -
Interest received 1.41 1.22
Net cash flows (used in} investing activities (B) {108.22) (75.81)
C. Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 1,374.00 1,001.35
Repayment of short-term borrowings - {119.96}
Interest paid (2440.86) (115.09)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities (C} 1,133.14 766,30
Net increase/ {decrease) in eash and cash equivalents (A+B+C} 65.44 (6.56)
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year 8.31 15.87

74.75 9.3t

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The Cash flow staternent has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (*Ind AS 7°) on Cash Flow Statement

prescribed in Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, notified uader section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The amendments to Ind AS 7 Cash flow staterents requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. This
amendment has become effective from Ist April ,2017 and the required disclosure is made below. There is no other impact on the financial statements due to this

amendments.

Components of cash and eash equivatents considered only for the purpose of cash flow statement

Cash in hand 6.99 151
73.75 7.80

En bank- current accounts
74.74 9.31




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Statement of cash flows
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupess in Lakhs)

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-cash changes
Fair value Current/
31 March 2021 | Cashiflows | changes/ | Non-curreat | 31 March 2022

Particulars

Interest classification
Long-term borrowings (refer note 18) 1,762.12 (240.86} 252,11 - 1,773.37
Shert-term borrowings (refer note 20) 520896 1,374.00 552,66 - _ 7,136.62
‘Fotal liabilities from financing activities 6,972.08 1,133.14 804.77 - $,909.99

Non-eash changes
Fair value Current/
31 March 2020 | Cash flows | changes/ | Nom-current | 31 March 2021

Parficuiars

Interest classification
Long-term borrowings (refer note 18) B (113.09)] 23018 1,647.03 1,762.12
Short-term borrowings (refer note 20) 3,885.50 881.39 ¢ 44307 5,208.96
Other financial labilities (refer note 22) 1,647.03 - - {1,647.03) -
‘Fotal liabilities from financing activities 5,532.53_ 7_'_66.30 673.25 - 1 6,972.08

As per our report of even date affached

For and on behs!f of the Board of Directors of
gwvood Commercial Deve ivate Limited
CIN : U45201IMH2006PTC 164110

ForBSR & Ca. LLP
Chartered Accowntants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

MPardivialls
Mo Fardialls

Partner
Membership No: 108511

05hu Chaturvedi
Managing Director
PIN 05151360

Place : Mumbai

Piace : Mumbai
Date : 28 May 2022

Date : 28 May 2022




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1. Corporate infermation
Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited (the Company) is a company domiciled in India

and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the
business of developing, owning and operating of shopping malls, commercial and residential

premises.
2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act and

amendments, as applicable.
These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on 28 May 2022,

Details of accounting policies are included in Note 2.2 to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain  financial assets and Fair value (refer note 2.2 (A))
liabilities

Net defined benefit (asset) / Fair value of plan assets less present value of
liability defined obligations

{c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All the financial information have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all amounts
have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

{d) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. In preparing these financial statements,
management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

Note 8 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
tax losses carried forward can be used;

Note 33 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Notes 19, 24 and 32 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Note 37 - impairment of financial assets and

Note 2.2 (B) and 2.2 (C) - estimation of wseful life of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties.

Note 2.2 (G) and 40- Evaluation of satisfaction of performance obligation at a point in time
for the purpose of revenue recognition.

{e) Recent Accounting Develepments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated 23rd March, 2022, has made the

following amendments to Ind AS which are effective 1st April, 2022:

a. Ind AS 109: Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

b. Ind AS 103: Reference to Conceptual Framework

c. Ind AS 37: Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
d. Ind AS 16: Proceeds before intended use




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

(f) Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2; inputs other than quotes prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

Hability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market data

{unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a Hability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to

the entire measurement,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the
followings:

- Note 38 — financial instruments and

- Note 4 - investment property
{g) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the entity’s
normal operating cycle;
(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c) itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or
(d) itis cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a) itis expected to be settled in, the entity’s normal operating cycle;
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(g} Current and non-current classification (Continued)

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with the Schedule
HI to the Act. Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and
Habilities.

(h) Going cencern

The Company is engaged in the business of mixed used development at Nagpur, Based on the
future business plans and cash flows of the Company, and the financial support from the fellow
subsjdiaries and ultimate holding company of the Company, the management believes that the
Company, as at 31 March 2022, will continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future, realise its assets and discharge its Habilities as they fall due for payment, in the normal

course of business,

(i} Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022, The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give

effect to them as required by law.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2 Significant aceounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

A. Financial instruments

0

(@)

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly

attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assels

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- FVOCI ~ debt investment;

FVOCI - equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and
in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets,

1

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
cutstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVQCI if it meets both of the following conditions

and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

putstanding.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

A. Financial instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company
has elected the irrevocable option to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in OCI (designates as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Company has irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces on accounting mismatch that wouid

otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business
is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on
earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profit,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities
or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s

management,

the risk that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows

collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periocds, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

A. Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time

value of morney and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.

liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes

assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

In making this assessment, the Company considers:
- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate
features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset

acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, 2 feature
that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant
at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost- These assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
Josses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

A. Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss,

Equity investments at FVOCI - These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial lLiabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on

derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not

retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and

the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new
financial Hability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Confinued)

A. Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the
new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

B. Property, plant and eqguipment

v

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Jtems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting frade

discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item

and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost
of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item
to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and

removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,

plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in profit or foss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

B. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i

(iv)

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of the company has been provided as
per written down value method as per the estimated useful lives of the respective item
of Property, Plant and Equipment indicated in Part “C’ of Schedule II of the Act.

The details are set out as below:

Asset

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Motor vehicles 8 years
- Computers 3 years

Office equipments 5 years

Useful] life as per Schedule IT

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent
advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above
represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Capital work-in progress and capital advances

Capital work-in progress comprises of the cost of property, plant and equipment that are
not yet ready for their intended use as at the balance sheet date. Advances given
towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet
date are disclosed as ‘Other non-current assets’.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

C. Investment Property
(i) Recognition and measurement

Investment properties are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but net for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured initially at their cost of
acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization critetia are
met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(i) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property calculated
as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item
is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the note no 4 of the Financial statements.

{iif) Depreciation
Depreciation on Investment Property has been provided as per written down value
method as per the useful lives indicated in Part ‘C* of Schedule I of the Act or based
on management estimates using technical evaluation.

The details are set out as below:

Asset category Useful life Useful fife as per
estimated by the  Schedule II of the Act

management
Building 5 years 60 years
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

D, Impairment

(i)

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost; and

- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit imnpaired. A financial asset is
‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company measures loss alfowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit
losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occutring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased

significantly since initial recognition.
Trade and other receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Trade receivables are tested for
impairment on 2 specific basis after considering the sanctioned credit limits, security
like letters of credit, security deposit collected, etc. and expectations about future cash
flows.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
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2.2 Significant accounting policies {Continued)

. Impairment (Continued)

o

(i)

Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is
the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment

and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that

the Company expects to receive).
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVQCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is
recognised in OCL

Write off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generated sufficient cash flows to be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is

tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are
grouped together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or CGUSs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

D, Impairment (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of 2 CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (¢.g. central office building for providing support to
various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment
of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the

corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment fosses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata

basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of
other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is
made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised.

E. Employee benefits

()

iy

Short-term emplayee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will bave no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Confinued)

E. Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Defined contribution plans (Continued)

Defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or
loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and

deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation resnlts in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (“the asset ceiling”). In order to calculate
the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding

requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling {if
any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net
interest expense (income} on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as
a result of contributions and benefit payments, Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plan are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or *past service gain®)
or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the seftlement of a defined benefit plan when

the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

E. Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Other long-term employee benefits (Continued)
obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognises in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

F. Provisions and contingent linbilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflows of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes. Contingent liabilities ave disclosed for,

(1) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or

(2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an cutflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of

the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the standalone financial statements. However, the
same are disclosed in the standalone financial statements where an inflow of economic

benefit is probable.

G. Revenue recognition
Ind AS 115 has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on March 28, 2018

and is effective from accounting period beginning on or after April 01, 2018.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

()  Revenue from operations

The Company has applied modified retrospective approach in adopting the new
standard (for all contracts other than completed contracts) and accordingly recognised
revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 as compared to earlier Percentage of




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

G. Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

()

Revenue from operations (Continued)
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of properties comprising of both

commercial and residential units.
The Company recognises revenue when it determines the satisfaction of performance

obligations at a point in time. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
promised products to custotner in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products.

In arrangements for sale of units the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS
115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue recognition
criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with customers
generally meet the criteria for considering sale of units as distinct performance
obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the
revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold
separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. The transaction price is
also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a
significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or

service from the customer.

For sale of units, the Company recognises revenue when its performance obligations
are satisfied and customer obtains control of the asset.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on
contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of inveicing
is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of
tirne is required, as per contractual terms.

Contract liabilities are recognised when there is billing in excess of revenue and
advance received from customers,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration,
adjusted for volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date the
entity's right to receive the payments is established.

All revenue is stated exclusive of goods and service tax.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Confinued)

G. Revenue recognition (Continued)

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

L]

The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is
satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators
such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the
asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for
performance to date and alternate uwse of such product or service, transfer of
significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer,

etc.

H. Legses

Ui

(i)

Policy applicable before April 01, 2019

Finance Lease - Agreements are classified as finance leases, if substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the lessee.

Operating Lease - Agreements which are not classified as finance leases are considered
as operating lease. :

Operating lease payments/income are recognised as an expense/income in the statement
of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term unless there is another

systematic basis which is more representative

Policy applicable after April 01, 2019

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a
lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an asset the Company assesses

whether:

- The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly
or implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the
capability of a physical distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right,

then the asset is not identified

- The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right
when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for

what purpose the asset is used.
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23 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

H. Leases(Continued)
As a Lessee

Right of use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-
use asset at cost which comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any fease
payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the legsee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined, If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s

incremental borrowing rate,

L. Recognition of interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

-the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

-the amortised cost of the financial Hability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset that have become credit-impaired)
or to the amortised cost of the Hability. However, for financial assets that have
become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income

reverts to the gross basis.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

J. Income tax

t

(i

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to

the extent that it relates to 2 business combination or to an item recognised directly in

equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current fax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset
and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in
respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting

nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

temporary differences related to investrnents in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse

in the foreseeable future; and
- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax
losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in
case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to
the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is
probable respectively that the refated tax benefit will be realised.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

J. Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the Hability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax assets and Habilities
will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (*MAT’) credit entitlement is penerally recognised as a
deferred tax asset if it is probable (more likely than not) that MAT credit can be used in
future years to reduce the regular tax liability. However, since company has opted for
new tax regime hence entire available MAT credit is charged Profit and loss in current

year,

Section 115BAA

A new Section 115BAA was inserted in the Income Tax Act, 1961, by The Government
of India on September 20, 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019
which provides an option to companies for paying income fax at reduced rates in
accordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said section.

K. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.

L. Foreign exchange translation and accounting of foreign exchange transaction

(i) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying
to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the
Company uses 2 monthly average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at
the date of the transactions.
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2.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

L. Foreign exchange translation and accounting of foreign exchange transaction (Continued)

(ii) Conversion
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the
closing rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are catried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

(iii} Treatment of Exchange Difference

Exchange differences arising on settlermnent/ restatement of short-term foreign currency
monetary assets and Habilities of the Company are recognized as income or expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

M. Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the

effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

N, Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks and cheques on hand,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 3] March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 5 ; Investment property under construction

The Company is planning a retail centric mixed used development project at Nagpur. The expenditure incurred during this period is
classified as “Investment Property - Under Construction” and will be apportioned to the asset on the completion of the project.

3,138.84 3,060.99

Opening balance

Addition during the year
Administrative and others expenses
39.62 77.85

Management consultancy fees

CWIP - School Project 30.08 -
Closing balance 3,208.54 3,138.84
CWIP ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWiP Less than 1-2 years 2.3 years More than Total
1 vear 3 years
Projects in progress
School Project 30.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.08
Retail Mall 39.62 77.85 241.12 2,.819.87 3,178.46
Projects temporarily NA NA NA NA NA
suspended
Projects which are overdue or exceeded costs as per original plan:
To be completed in
WIP
¢ Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year
Projects in progress
Retail Mall NA NA NA NA
School Project NA NA NA NA
Projects temporarily NA NA NA NA
suspended
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 7 : Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Security deposit

Mobilisation advances
Considered doubtful
Less ; Provision for expected credit loss

Total other financial assets
Note 8 : Deferred tax assets (net)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
Difference in depreciation in block of fixed assets as per Income-tax Act, 1961 and
depreciation allowable under books

Indexation of freehold land
Provision for expenses disaliowed under Section 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961

On reversal of revenue and cost of residential project as per Ind AS 115
Provision for expected credit loss on financial agsets

Notional expense on Corporate Guarantee provided by Parent
Investments in equity instruments measured at FVOCI

Total Deferred tax assets (et}

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

83.76 80.81
412.00 412.00
(412.00) {412.00)
83.76 30.81
54.27 56.73
2,698.24 2,460.99
4.24 4.03
861.48 861.48
308.26 308.26
4.47 3.35
272.36 464.38
4,203.32 4,159.22




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
s at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rapees in Lakhs)

Note 9 : Non-current tax assets (net)

Particulars

(a) Amount recogaised in the statement of profit and loss

31 March 2022 31 Masch 2021
Current tax expense {A)
Current tax {including of earlier years) - {22.86)
Deferred tax expense (B)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {235.99) (180.82)
Tax expense recognived in the income statement (A+85) (23599 (203.68)

A niew section 115BAA was inserted in the Income Tax Act. 1961, by The Government of India on 20 September 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment)

Qrdinance 2019 which provides ar option to companies for paying income tax at reduced rates in aceordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said

section. The Company has decided to exercise the said option.

(b) Amouyts recognised in other comprehensive income
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars Before tax Tax (expense)  Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) Net of fax
benefit benefit

Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Giains from investments in equity instruments £39.24 {192.04) 647.21 {4,243.75) 971.00 (3,272.75)
measured at FVOCE
Remeasurement of post empioyment benefit (0.51) .14 8.37) 0.81 (0.23) 0.58
obligation _

838.73 {191.90} 646.84 (4,242.94) 970.77 {3272.171)
{¢) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax (98.24) (388.58)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (Current year 25.17% and Previous Year 25.17%) (24.73) (97.80)
Tax effect of
Effect of expenses that is non-deduetible in determining taxabie profit 1945 76.03
Tax on Carried forward loss 5.28 "
Effect of indexation benefit on land {237.26) (177.94)
Others 0.93 (3.97)
Tax expense as per statement of profit and loss (23633) . (203.68)
|Effective tax rate 245056%  32.42%
Particulars 31 March 2022 1 31 March 2021
TDS receivable 19.24 17.62
Non-current tax assets (net) 19.24 17.62 |

{d) Movement in deferred tax balances

Net balances at  Recognised in Recognised in

Balance at 31 March 2022

Net Deferred tax Deferred tax

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred fax assets/ (liabilities)

1 April 2021 the statement 0oC1 asset Liability

of profit and

foss
Property, Plant and Equipment 8673 (2.46) - 54,27 54.27 -
Investment Property 2,460.98 2131.26 - 2,698.24 2,598.24 -
Investments 464,38 - (192.02) 27236 27236 -
Ind AS 115 impact B61.48 4.00 - 861.48 861.48 n
Notionat expense on Corporate Guarantee provided b 336 L1 4.47 4.47 -
Loans and other financial assets 308.26 0.00 - 308.26 308,26 -
[Provisions 4.03 .08 0,13 4.24 4.24 -
Tax assets (liabilities) before set-off 4,159.22 235,99 {19189 4,203.33 4,203.32 -

4,203.32




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 Marci 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 9 : Non-current tax assets (net)

Balance at 31 March 2021
Net balances at Recognised in Recogrised in Net  Deferred tax  Deferred tax
1 April 2020  the statement OoCI asset Liability
of profit and
Toss
Praperty, Plant and Equipment 55.50 1.23 u 56.73 56,73 -
Investment Froperty 2,283.04 177.94 - 2,460.98 2,460.98 )
Investments (506,59} - 970.97 464,38 464,38 -
Ind AS 115 impact 861.48 - - 861,48 B41.48 -
Retention money payable {0.20) 0.20 - - N -
Notional expense on Corporate Guarantee provided & 1.97 1.39 - 3.36 3.36 -
Loans and other financial assets 308,26 - - 30826 308.26 -
Provisions 4.18 0.05 (0.20) 463 4.03 -
MAT Credit Entitlement - - " - - -
“Pax assets {labilities) before set-off 3,007.64 180.82 97077 4,150.22 4,159.22 -
[Set-off of deferred tax liabilities - “ - -
Net deferred tax assets/ (lizbilities) 4,159.22




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Cortinued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
Note 10 : Other non-current assefs
(Unsecured, considered good)

To parties other than related parties
(Goods and services tax (GST) input credit

Total Other non-current assets
Note 11 : Inventories
{valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)

Work in progress - residential project (Refer note 26)

Total Inventories

31 March 2622

31 March 2021

1,124.94 1,083.80
1,124.94 1,086.43
33,887.69 31,136.51
33,887.69 31,136.51

]
]
b
9



A By
§ et

8Py

SJUSTSIAUI JO onjeA wl juautnizduy Jo junowe 2jefesddy
SJUSUNSIAUL pajonbum Jo junoure 2egsSTy

JORJa) ONEA I pUE SJUSUNSIAU pajonb 3o Junoure sedesddy
SPUIWISIAU JUSLIND-TOU JO Meddiy

spIEIa(

[Z0T YOIRIAL T€  TTOT YDXEIA] £€

sae[ndiaey

8Ly 0LEDT SJUIUISIAUT JUILIND [E)O

0 | Teo'11

(5) pumy mu Y, 104S BN DT
Ty 2€£°6

(D) punyg sButaeg s Bag BAIPY

dn pred

Afng ‘CTdLAA) ssof pue jgoid ySnoay) snjea Jej je DIN[BA SPDUWSIAEY
paenbun

'SY Ul nowy

SON

Sy U1 Junowy SON

120T YoIRly 1€

SX B
TT0T Yoary 1¢ . ATRAEd

SJUDUIISIAUI JUALINY
SIUIIMISIAU] : 7] AJON]
(spyer1 ut seadimy uerpyg : ousimn)

0T Y24 [ € 10 SD
(panugguo)) syuawiaye)s JerduRHL oY) 0) S3J0N

PRI 9BALL] SIdOT9AS(] [RIDISUIIO)) POOMTRY]




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 13 : Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks:

- in current accounts
Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

Note 14 : Loans
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

To parties other than related parties
Advance to staff

Total Loans

Loans and Advance to specified person

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

73.75 7.80

0.99 1.51

_ 74.74 9.31
2.83 325
2.83 3.25

Amount of loan or advance in the

Type of Borrower nature of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and
Advances in the nature of loans

Promotor Nil Nil
Directors Nil Nil
KMPs Nit Nil
Related Parties Nil Nil
Note 15 : Other financial assets
Unsecured and considered good
Bank deposits (due to mature within 12 months of the reporting date) * 21.90 2121
Total other financial assets 21.90 21.21
* Bank Deposits are kept against bank guarantee given to Nagpur poflution control board.
Note 16 : Other current assets
To related parties
Deferred guarantee expense on corporate guarantee given by holding company, Prozone
s 2.63 445
Inta Properties Limited
To parties other than related parties
Prepaid expense 1.40 1.85
Advance to vendors 104.14 481.63
Subvention and brokerage charges 350.61 292.18
438.78 780.11

Total other current assets




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Nete 17 : Equity share capital

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Authorised share capital
160 lakhs (31 March 2021: 160 lakhs) equity shares of Rs 10 each 1,600.00 1,600.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

154.15 Takhs (31 March 2021: 154.15 lakhs) equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up 1,541.50 1,541.50
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 1,541.50 1,541.50
a) Reconeiliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

No. i Iakhs Rs in lakhs No. in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 154.15 1,541.50 154.15 1,541.50
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 154.15 1,541.50 154.15 1,541,50

b} Rights, preferences and restriction attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled fo receive remaining assets of the Company,
afier distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

¢) Shares held by holding company

P .rt' ) lrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

articusa No.inlakbs  Rsin lakhs No. in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Proz'one Liberty International Limited, Singapore, 94.80 048.00 94.80 948,00
Holding company

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Particulars 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
No, in lakhs % holding No. in fakhs % holding
Prozone Liberty International Limited, Singapore 94.80 61.50% 94.80 61.50%
Triangle Real Estate India Investments Limited 53.95 35.00% 53.95 35.00%
{e) Promotors' shareholdings during the year
Shares held by promotors at the end of the year % Change
Promoter's Name No. of shares | % of Total shares | during the year
9480000 61.50% Nil

(i)} Prozone Liberty International Limited, Singapore, Holding company




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
Note 17.1 : Other equity
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particniars

Securities premivm

Opening balance 20,964.58 20,964.58
Add: Addition during the year - ~
Closing balance (refer sub-note 1) 20,964.58 20,964.58
Retained earnings
Opening balance 43.27) 345,31
Add: (Loss) for the year (98.24) (388.58)
Closing balance (refer sub-note 2) {141.51) {43.27)
Other Comprehensive Income

2.70 2.12

Opening balance

Add: Gain/(loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans {0.36) 0.58
Closing balance 2.35 2,70
Gain on fair value of investments

Opening balance {1,869.44) 1,403.31
Add: (reduction) for the year 647.21 (3,272.75)
Closing balance (1,222.23) (1,869.44)
Equity Component on fair value of Corporate Guarantee given by Parent

Opening balance 20.41 11.51
Add: addition for the year - 8.91
Closing balance 20.41 2041
Total Other equity 19,623.60 19,074.99
Sub-note:

Securities premium is received pursuant to the further issue of shares/ debentures at a premium net of the
share / debenture issue expenses. This is a non-distributable reserve except for the following instances

where the share premium account may be applied;

i) towards the issue of unissued shares of the Company to the members of the Company a3 fully paid

bonus shares;
ii) for the purchase of its own shares or other securities;

i) in writing off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
iv) in writing off the expenses of; or the commission paid or discount atlowed on, any issue of shares or

debentures of the Company; and
v} in providing for the premium payable on the redemption of any redeemable preference shares or of any

debentures of the Company.

Retained earnings represents the accumulated profits earned/(loss) of the Company.

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on fair valuation of equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on fair valuation of equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Nofe 18 ; Borrowings

(Secured)

Term Loan from Financial Institation 1,813.37 1,802.12

Less : Debt syndication fees 48.00 40.00

Total Borrowings 1,773.37 1,762.12
Notes:

i) Rs. 1813.37 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs.1802.12 lakhs ) loan from Financial Institution presently carrying interest @ 14.00 %
(previous year 14.00%) (floating rate). The loan is repayable in 12 monthly instalment starting from November 2019. The foan is
secured by land admeasuring 18,652 square meters and building thereon. The above loans are further secured by corporate guarantee
of the Holding Company Prozone Intu Properties Limited and hypothecation of sold and unsold receivables from the residential
project. The restructuring of this loan is approved by the lender, the said loan is now repayable in 8 equal instalments starting from

April 2022 to November 2022,

ii) As per RBI's Policy, the Company has availed the relief provided by banks & financial institution by way of moratorium on
principal and interest repayments on the loans taken from banks and financial institutions and thus the repayment schedule has been

modified accordingly.
The Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

Note 19 : Provisions
Provision for employee benefits {refer note 33)
- provision for gratuity 8.95 8.95

Total Provisions 8.95 8.95

Note 20 ; Borrowings

Unsecured loan from ultimate holding company, Prozene Intu Properties Limited* 3,749.21 869.34

Unsecured loan from fellow subsidiary company, Empire Mail Private Limited ** 3,387.41 4,340.62

Total Borrowings 7,136.62 5,209.96

*Repayable on demand carries interest rate @ 8.50% p.a. (previous year 8.50% p.a.)

*¥Repayable on demand carries interest rate @ 10.60% p.a. (previous year @10.60 p.a.)

Note 21 : Trade payables

Trade Payable

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below) 19.38 3.93

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,345.18 2,077.43
1.364.48 2,081.36

Total Trade payables

Micro and small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 have been
determined based on the information available with the Company and the required disclosures are given below:




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Disclosure of trade payable ageing schedule
OQutstanding for followings periods from due date of payments
FY 2021-2022
Les;:::“ ! 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Unbilled . Nil Nil Nil Nil 1,122.39
Billed
(i) MSME 6.66 7.27 5.45 Nil 19.38
(ii) Others 8745 135.01 0.25 Nil 22271
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil
{iv} Disputed dues - Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit
Outstanding for followings periods from due date of payments
206202621

FY Les;::fn 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Unbilled Nil Nil Nil Nil 1,650.75
Billed
(i) MSME 393 Nil Nil Nil 3.93
(ii) Others 352.86 33.82 Nil Nil 386.69
(iii} Disputed dues - MSME Nil Nil Nil Nii Nil
{iv) Disputed dues - Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Note 22 : Other financial liabilities
Retention money payable 634.10 658.99
Lease deposits from prospective tenants 64.47 64.47
Total Other financial Habilities 698.57 723.46
Note 23 : Other current liabilities
Advance from customers / realisation under agreement to sell 24,126.92 22,374.15
Statutory dues payable
- Tax deducted at source payable 32.32 17.80
- Provident fund payable 0.28 1.65
- ML.WF payable 0.04 0.04
- CGST/SGST payable 0.49 0.68
Total Other current Habilities 24,160,058 22,394.32
Note 24 : Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 33)

- provision for gratuity 2.84 1.53

- provision for compensated absences 507 5.52

- provision for other employee benefits expense 9.44 8.51
Total Provisions 17.35 15.57




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as ai 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 25 : Other income

Interest income
- on fixed deposits
- on Deposit with court
- on financial Habilities carried at amortised cost
Sundry Balances Written back
Gain on sale of Investment
Total Other income

Note 26 ; Cost of material consumed

Opening work in progress - residential project
Add:

Construction cost

Personnel cost

Professional fees

Borrowing cost

Addition on account of significant Finance component under Ind AS 115
Less: NRV Loss of Residential Project

Less:

Subvention and brokerage charges transfer to other current assets
Closing work in progress - residential project

Total Cost of residential project

Note 27 : Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus

Expenses refated to post-employment defined benefit plans (refer note 33)

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Expenses related to compensated absences (refer note 33)

Total Employee benefits expense
Note 28 : Finance cost

Interest on car loan

Other borrowing costs:

Interest expenses as per RERA order
Naotional corporate guarantee expense

Interest expense on present value of retention money
Tota}
Note 29 : Depreciation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Total Depreciation expense

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1.41 122
3.17 .
- 6.29
132.10 -
2.52 .
139.20 751
31,136.52 27,727.65
111.93 267.28
26.98 28.98
69.03 $8.20
868.11 739.41
1,877.72 2,368.34
(144.17) (28.70)
33,946.12 31,191.16
58.43 54.64
33,887.69 31,136.52
61.50 53.75
2.10 2.14
1.50 1,92
. (0.08)
65.10 57.73
. 0.40
71.45 282.14
445 5.52
- 7.08
75.90 295.14
22.29 41.21




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 30 : Other expenses

Advertisement, business and sales promotion expenses
Electricify charges

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Office expenses

Communication expenses

Travelling expenses

Directors sitting fees

Professional fees

Payment to auditors' (refer note 30 (a) below)
Management consultancy fees

Compensation as per RERA

NRYV Loss of Residential Project

CSR expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Total Other expenses
Note 30 {2) : Payment to anditors

- Statutory audit
~ Tax audit and Others

Note 31 : Earnings per equity share

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

5.77 6.34
3.25 3.63
1.75 0.38
5.46 .02
17.56 15.47
0.46 0.40
9.16 371
2.50 2.50
19.79 19.45
9.50 9.27
45.22 36.23
6.30 32.53
144.17 28.70
- 7.94
39.24 3112
310.14 205.69
9.00 9.00
0.50 0.27
9.50 9.27

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set

out below:

Basic: Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, excluding equity shares purchased by the Company and held

as treasury shares.

Diluted: Dituted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Employee share options are dilutive potential equity shares for the

Company.

Pariiculars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each (No. in Lakhs})

Number of shares at the

beginning and end of the year 154.15 154.15
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 154,15 154.15
Weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding during the year - .
Total number of potential equity share for calculating diluted earning per share 154.15 154,15
Net profit after tax available for (98.24) (388.58)
equity shareholders (Rs. In

lakhs)

Basic Earning per share (in Rs.) (0.64) (2.52)
Diluted Earning per share (in Rs.) (0.64) (2.52)




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
25 at 31 March 2022

‘Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
Yote 32 : Contingent linbilities 2nd commitments are given below:
5} Commitments

1) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances) Rs. 670.89 lakhs (31 March 2021 : Rs.
526.08 lakhs).

B) Contingent liabilities
i) Guarantee given by bank on behalf of the Company Rs. 20 Lakhs (31 March 2021 : Rs. 20 lakhs).

ii} Disputed demands in respect of Income-tax:

Assessment Year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Disputed Hability in respect of income-tax for A.Y. 2017-18 L2 192

{Interest thereon not ascertainable at present) ) :
1.92 1.92

iif) Litigation pending against the company under MahaRERA authority and courts
Estimated liability on account of interest till 31 March 2022 is Rs 13.86 lakhs (31 March 2021 : Rs. 12.33).

iv} “The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India ("SC") by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s EPFO, set
out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation
of Provident Fund contribution. Company has also made provision of provident fund liability till 31 March 2022 and even paid the same in current

financiai year.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as af 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
Note 33 : Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

A Defined benefit oldigations and shovt-term compensated absences

iy Defined benefit plan
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gretuily Act,1972 under which an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to

specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.

The present valuz of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of
service as giving rise to additional urit of employes benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation,

if) Short-term compensated absences
27 days of privilege leave for staff is allowed each year, Unutiliged leave can be carried forward to the extend of 42 days of

leave, If the same not availed in calendar year then the same wili be lapsed.

Funded Plan
Particulars Grateity
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a)| Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 153 | 1.49
Past Service Cost - f -}
Interest Cost {.59 .64
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss 2,12 2.14
bY; Included fn other Comprehensive Income
Actuaria! changes arising from changes in financial assumptions {0.60) 0.23
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience adjustments 1.10 (1.06)
Return on plan assets exclading amounts included in Interest Income 0.01 0.02
Actuarial {Gain} / Loss recognized in OCI .51 (0.81)
¢) [Recognised iz Balance Sheet
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 12.53 118}
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year {0.74) | {0.69)
Net Liability (ASsel) L7 1048
Changes in defined benefit obligations
&} Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Dlefined Benefit Obligation (“PBO™) at the beginring of the year il.i8 1i.65
Service cost 153 1.49
Past Service Cost - -
Interest cost 0.64 071
Actuariaf loss / (gain) 0.50 {0.83)
Henefits paid {134} (1.85)
Present value of n[mgatlou as at the end of the year 12.51 1118 |
e} iChange in fair value of assefs '
Fair value of plan assets at the begining of the year 0.591 0.64
Interest Income 0.06 0.07
Returm on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income {0.01) 0.02)
Benefits paid - -
air value of plan assets at the end of the year 0,74 0.69
f} | Reconciliation of net defined henefit Hability
Net opening provision in books of accounts 10.48 11.00
| Employee Benefit Expense [ 114 2144
| Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 0.51 (0.81)
Benefits Paid {1.34) (1.85}
Closing proviston m books of accounts 11,79 10.48




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 33 : Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 *‘Employee Benefits'

Unfunded Plan
Particulars Compensated absences
31 March 2022 31 Maech 2021
a}{Changes in defined benefit obligations i
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year ]
Defined Benefit Obligation (“FPBO™) at the beginning of the year 552 f 5.60
Service cost 21 1.16
Interest cost 0.3} 0.33
Actuarial foss / (gain) {1.54) (1.58)
Liabilities transferred in / (out) - -
Benefits paid (0.42) -
Present vithue Of obligation a4 ai the end of the year 507 5.52
by Expenses recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 1.21 1.15
Past Service Cost
| Enterest Cost 031 | 0.33 §
Actearial (Gain) / loss on Cbligation {1.54) (1.58)
Total Tnctuded In "ediployee benelit expense’ (0.02) ~ (0.08)
¢} [ Liability Recognised in Balance Sheet
Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year 5.07 5.52
'Nef Lialility 5.07 5.52
d){Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligation ]
[ Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions {6.19) 0.09§
Actuariai chanpes arising from changes in demographic assumptions ~ 1 -
Experience adjustments {1.35) (1.67)
Net actuarial (gain) (1.54} (1.58)
Parﬁcn!ar.s” . Gratyity _Compensated absences
€) 31 March 2022 31 March 2071 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current/ nan-turrent classification [ i -
[Current 1.66 1,54 5.07 5.52
Mot current i0.12 8.95 - -
11,78 10.48 5.07 5.52]
The following table surmnarizes the principal assumptions used for defined benefit obligation and compensated absences:
Gratuity Compensafed absences
Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 6.05% 6.05% 6.40% 6.05%
 Salary escalation rate (%o p.a.) * 5.10% 5,10% 5.10% 5.10%
Withdrawal Rates 10% at ali apes 10% at all ages 10% at all ages 10% at alf ages
Leave availment rate " - 500% 3.00%
Mortality rate Indian assured Indian assured Indian assured Indian assured
fives mortality | lives mortality | lves mortality (20124 lives mortality
(2012-14) uktimate] (2012-14) ultimate 14) ultimate {2812-14) ultimate

*The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

demand in the employmment market,

Quantities sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:

Particulars Gratuity Compensated absences
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2022 [ 31 March 2021

1.5% increase 0.5% increase

i Discount rate 12,56 10.89 507 541

ii, Salary escalation rate - over a long-ferm 13.19 1146 530 5.64

i 10% increase 10% increase

ii, Withdrawal rate (W.R.} 12.97 1.2t 514 5.46
0.5% decrense 0.5% decrease

i. Discount rate 13.23 ! 11.48 5.30 564

it. Salary escalation rate - over # long-term 12,57 10.90 5.07 541
10% decrease 10% decrease

i, Withdrawal rate {W.R.) 12.78 I [1E3 5.23 J.58




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 Maveh 2022

(Cugrency ; indian Rupees in Lakhs}

Note 33 : Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'
Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation, keeping all other
achanrisl assumgptions constant.

Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Gratuity T Compensated absences
Cashflow Distribution {%) Cashflow Distribution (%)

[ 1st Folfowing Year o 1.28 6.80% 0.87 12.30%
2nd Following Year 1,32 7.00% 0.78 11.00%
3rd Following Year 4.68 24,70% 139 19.70%
4th Following Year 0.84 4.50% 0,46 6.50%
5th Fotlowing Year 0.79 4.20% 0,41 5.80%
Sum of Year 6 te 10 Year 4.56 24.20% 1.65 23.40%
Total expected payments 13.44 5.57 |

B Expericnce adjustruents
Particulars 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Present value of defined benefit obligation 11,18 11.65 8.68 718 8.37
Fair valae of plan assets {0.69) (.65} {060} {0.55) (1.5%)
{Deficit) 10.48 11.00 808 6.63 6,78

C Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contribution towards pravident fimd to a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund plan is operated by the

regional provident fund commissioner. Under the schemes, the Company i required to contribute a specified percentage of payrell cost to the retirement contribution
schemes to fund benefits,

a) The Company has recognised the fotiowing amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:

Cashflow  Distribution (%)

(i) Contribution fo provident fund 1.50 1.92
(iiy Contribution to MLWF fumd - -

1.50 1.92

“The Hom'ble Supreme Court of Tndia ("SC") by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s EPFO, set out the principles based
an which atlowances paid to the emplayees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Compasny has

also made provision of provident fund liability till 31 March 2022 and even paid the same.
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Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 39 : Capital Management
The Company manages the capital structure by a balanced mix of debt and equity. Necessary adjustments are made in the capital structure considering the factors vis-a-
vis the changes in the general economic conditions, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liguidity position. Higher leverage is used for
funding more liquid working capital needs and conservative leverage is used for fong-term capital investments. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes during the financial year ended 31 March 2022. The Company calculates the tevel of debt capital required to finance the working capital requirements using
traditional and modified financial metrics including leverage/gearing ratios and asset turnover ratios,

As of balance sheet date, leverage ratios is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 Marck 2021
Total debt {Refer note 18 and 20) $,909.99 6,972.08
Less: cash and bank balances (Refer note 13) 414 9.31
Adjusted net debt 8,835.25 6,962.77
Total equity 21,165.10 20,616.49
Adjnsted net dePt t_o__a_(_i}usted eguity ratio (times) 0,42 0.34

Note 40 : IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a) The Company is engaged in the business of developing, owning and operating of shopping malls, commercial and residential premises.
Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customer has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 28 March 2018 and is effective from accounting period
beginning on or after I April 2018, replace existing revenue recognition standard. The application of Ind AS 115 has impacted the Company’s accounting for recognitiort

of revenue from real estate projects in SPV's.

b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Company believes that Revenue from operations best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by industry,

market and other economic factors.

¢} Reconciliation of contract assefs and contract liabilities and its significant changes

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Due from contract customers (coafract assets)

At the beginning of the reporting period

Cumulative catch up adjustments to revenue affecting contract asset
At the end of the reporting period

'Advance from contract customers (contract lability)

At the beginaing of the reporting period 22,374.15 19.651.45
Cumulative catch up adjustments to revenue affecting contzact liability - -
Additional advances received {net of refund) (124.95) 54,36
Sigrificant firancing component 1,871,712 2,368.34

24,126.92 2237415

At the end of the reporting period

The amount of Rs Nil lakhs recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year has been recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2022.




Hagwood Commercial Developers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2022

{Currency | Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

d) Performance obligation
The Compary is engaged in the business of developing, owning and operating of shopping malls, commercial and residential premises.

All the contracts entered with the customers consists of a single performance cbligation thereby the consideration aliocated to the performance obligation is based on
standalone selling prices.
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of retail, residential and comimercial units to customers for an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company

expects 1o receive in exchange for those units. The trigger for revenue recognition is normally completion of the project or receipt of approvals on completion from
relevant authorities or intimation to the customer of completion, post which the coatract becomnes non-cancellable by the parties,

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In certain cases, the Company has contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services 1o the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company adjusts the transaction price for the effects

of a sigaificant financing component,

Any costs ingurred that de not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the Company's input methods of revenue recognition as the amounts
are not reflective of our transferring control of the system to the customer, Significant judgment is required to evaluate assumptions related to the amount of net contract
revenues, including the impact of any performance incentives, liquidated damages, and other forms of variable consideration.

If estimated incremental costs on ay contract, are greater than the net contract revenues, the Company recognises the entire estimated loss in: the peried the foss becomes

Lnaam

¢) Transaction price allocated fo remaining performance obligation
The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performence obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2022 ts INR

15,432.13 lakhs (March 31 2021 is INR 15,426.55 lakhs), which will be recognised as revenue over a periad of 1-2 years

The Company applies practical expedient of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about the amount of the transaction price allocated to the retmaining
petformance obligation and an explanation of when the entity expects to recognise that amount as revenue for all reporting pericds presented before the date of initial

application.
Note 41 : Note on regrouping and Reclassifications

Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to conform to current period’s classification in order to comply with the requirements of
the amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 as per latest amendments dated 24 March 2021,

N
N 1
:(:C_._rr;}{j A




¢ 1
i 2 L
e St 8 AT

.E%W\Aw

S saAd YN VN %I oson] oFezony o atmsan w0 wnoy (@)
qons o s mak snojasxd ur y "e woly patersuad stooy] : a
§11 SV pul 1ad s snuaASI i . ) SONIqerT e} P FONBoIdap .
30 1OpIuR09a1 0w 03 arip ATEToN %01 (100 {1070) FIIMO-SI958Y 10T S pakojduss [eyde) wo wnay (0
d

2 pesIH0osI 101 ou._wuﬂﬁmwuﬂ”m%z v VN VN SUONEIZG0 TIOL SNUIADY xey Jayye yyoxd JaN onet joud Jop (1)

pas] ! S - .
st pesBosar jou umm%o.mwomaﬂﬁ VN VN VN Ambg TORIAdO WOL PRUSADY orjel Jaaowy edeo 3an] ()

_— : Jad] . .
58 pesIIo591 10U %MM%MMMM«,Z YN VN VN slqeded apex oferoay aseyaIng oyer Aoty sarqeded apeiy (5)
SIT SV pup sod 9 _:.83 opel} o8eI0A uonesdo wo umnu\,.m 21 190 . X
S POSIIF0a1 101 S SMIOASI SOTIS Y VN VN VN [OEAl PRL v ne 4 4 OREI IIAOUMY S2]qBAIROY PRI (])
S11 SV puy sod Lropusaur a3es voneredo SRIEIAY A
SE pSItdo0al 101 ST BNUIAT 901 YN N VN VN WsAUT v on ol o Ol Ao Aouasut (3)
1ad 52 onitanal .
0 nggmwmﬂ%ww otp onteion %St sT0) | oo Pitdeo areys by word jany oney Kby vo wney (p)
S11 SV pu 2od se P . . i . Jowigdoyy Xe) pue uonetosidsp .
30 uonruBooas nou o enp 2anedan %657 g0 (ire) Tediourg4isareuy ‘18210041 23072q Burey OREY 3FBI2A00) 9014135 13 (9)
%bT vE0 wo Aymby 19 0L, oney Amba-qa( (g)
%l SO0't _£01 AN[IQEY ] 0211 1SSV IUBLng oney WaLmy) (2)
periag poliag

SpEERygl  SouBlEeA 9 smowsasg | pussind A0FBUNEOMA(] ETACTIT. TN SIBHNLIE]

OLEY JO 2INSOPSIC 17p HON

(swppe] 1w seadnyy wepiy © dowazmoy)

CCOT YUY I £ 10 510

(ponuyuo)) syuamineys ferouvy 3y 03 S)0N

PSHWIT 918ALL] S1d0[0AR(] [RIOIOUIIO)) POOMBEL]



SRLBIOYSUSE S1BUMT) SIF JO Jjeysq 10 J0 SenNUR 1o suosted Aue oy Anwanpur 10 Agoonp sajuernd Suipiaoid \

10 FuIsaAl ‘BUIPTR] JBULING 10 SSTMISIO JO Sunpm ux vonsnnsur ywm {, seneg Sutpmm,,.} senmue uStoroy Surpniow ‘sonyua o suosad Aue WO} SPURY ANE PRATdal j0u sey Auedos Teak a3 Surmgy

S3LIBIOY ST
“Ruirpus] Jayiiry 103 aSIMIGO 10 BUNEM U TONINOSUT M (.sonmy Swpuny, ) sennus
P3O0 WOY I3IS) PRISIAUL JO PAUBO] JO PRSURADE 10U seyf Avedwos yuak o Surng

SIBLUTIN SIEJO J{¥Yq WO 10 Salmus 10 suostad Aue o) Apoanpu 10 Apoenp souereng Supraoid 10 Funsaam
UBI0I0) SUTPIYSUT ‘Saunus ko suosid Ame U1 {(5pUTY JO PUP] JO S92UM08 Jotp0 Aug Jo umrersad areys 1o spuny

__e

A1e19Y209q BRUIM KO HoN pp 310N

'$8200xd Jopun

S OR{M 391UBIERT U 1M SUOE SIISEINsOp J0 uonelduos Y05 pavse sey AN (O topeiodiory edouniy amddes] e Aoy fouednoog wed 20y peydde sey Auvedwoyy 24y, 770z gorem

1€ PAPUR J2a GU} J0J DUR J# S8 SIUSURIEIS [BIDUBY] PAEPLOSUOD 3t ur SHUN00q JO MONE[P0UR U0 SISIDISHS 0 3jqefed 150,001 DI 1509 UOHITOWSP patoedxs sprEmo; uotstaoxd pure ‘syweq ££°cv0°0C
5 03 FupeBadfe satonmean Jo snfea Jurdues S0 1 waop sl Ate 3o Josdsel oy “epewr usaq aaey stuaunsafpe ou ‘ASwmpiooss pue Y3y ar JON JO UOHEDIEADI JO $20URYD 24) $3ASIR( JuswaSeuenr
‘asea sy Jo siak pur Avedwo) s Aq pauTeqe uonmdo feSaf ‘NIVY 4q pajonpuoo podas Aprus uone3re] for1sqo oty ‘Awediio)) ayk Aq paureiqo wodos Seams BOrNRUOISE Juspuadapm uo pasegy

‘predaln ST Ut POIBME ST SoIuIIo;) aypeddy a3 jo Arden fHotsioep oy ‘7707 Amnuey pue |7 IoqUISnaCy
»0Z02I0 £ BIMOND 30 §°1°E'9 UOHDSS I paqimssard sefn 43 o} souepIoooe I $Xa3Mm0] I00J 30 10adsat 1y uoneAs)e
UOHBINNIS YOAC Pue £puys [oneuoior jonpuod o) way) Sunsanbar [z 330130 $ U0 IYIA(CE MaN 1B 0DIITLoD
"Aueduroy) a1} JO el 0) FEPUNS S1e SSED PrES sy} JO SSIMEISIWNDILS PUE S1OB] A} SOULS SIS pasu J3 wrede apyy o)
A11aq g4 tonyed o) MEIDIRIM 0] Auedwoy) a1 pasmolre sey ymosy SUL 610T°60'ZZ Paiep JuawiBpny sy uf eeiay Jo 1o Yy £q uaA1d suonosip mp Jo avumensmd UE N0 PaLies Aps o) uo paseq

SORIW Y'LE 01 SR 97 "G TUNSING WO 51380] JO HOROTISUCS 10 WSIoy ot ssearoul of paprunad sey pue P10T 30 89T JAGN 958D  passed {707 p0C] paIep BIpY] Jo Aoy 1odiry £q passed

Wk SoRIomne a1 0} SIspunwel wues sey Aweduio]) ayy, -, saurepmo Apnig [BITINRUOINY
do srgrssransad 1y surmsep 0) 10D SPISHIO HOHNJOSAT & N39S 0] JAPIC Ul Apms
siefladdy 2y o't seppoyIny wodiry Jusadwos au paypeosdde sey Auedwuoy o

ur wonnad 1M & pajyy pey Ausduo]) sty ‘suonerado W31 9yEs 01 uononnsqo Aue Sunears Amedwosy sY1 Jo 19403 Jno} = 03 1adsas L saurpe ¢ sjonid oty wogy siurepdmos ou ST 219E]} Je1p S15088ns

OSR IVY % NVEDA Wol 113 2y ySnonp Avedwoy s £q Ppaatenal uoneiaruy ‘wed JySey syl o) apeisqo Jofew v Suroq woy sSuppng o BAIBALS YoNgm 70 SHoda1 o YuBmsuos Tongiae pandase
Wed] APTUS HIOTUSSISSE PUE SISAEue (wajsks UORESIARY YeIIe W) (YO A) afuwy opey [BUOLOANP WG JH A PUe [BIOTF0 [v-Xe YBnony Apras feonnevosoe juspusdapur Uy papnpuos Auedwos) ayy

F661 “seymy ("9 a3 puw sBuipyng Aq pasnes suononnsqE) jo UORHOWS(]) YRRy 1od Se UOTIOR SIBIIUL 0} AU SJBALG EIpU] BT
‘1031300 110dXIy Sy pajonysur pue Jopewr sy ur Auedwoy) oy Jo [adde 2y} paoalas pey siogy 219}dwod §o uoyRIEpIST0D um@waoﬁ.;»ncoua?ﬁm&owc?mmﬁiwcuoﬁ_gauﬂmzu&«da ,._Eﬁmm

"DON 24} JO UOREDI[ASI PUR NIV £ panssy

snp pamolio} pey Awedimo) 2y, £ [0z sndny

1 0 9L T10T Alenigad ur JON s patelqo pue seonemsal pue sopw 19¢ se ssanoxd
OON,) 9122113130 UONoafa0 ON MTY olqrssTuunnd WINUIKES pasoues AJLIenigH Peg (NIVV.) mdSen wpuy jo Aogny pody

ur md3eN w joaford Enuaprsas s Jog Awedmro]y oy 03 panssi {,

S35 BIpU] JO Anzominy wodayy : o AqoN

(stppey w1 saadny werpty Aowanmyy)

LTOT YOO [E 10

by el

(panunon) syvauiaye)s [euruy a1y 0) s93ON

papuIY ajeAld s1dofeAs( [BIOIDWIIO)) poomBer]

& ey -l
"fisE3) wRlsicn
RRACY WIRERH

e s GOLER
5 {3 GOSHE
g wﬁm,mﬂu
iz ki 3 [
&

By

o




TZ0T ABIN 87 © djecy

70T AN 8T - oy

tequany : aoefg TequmMpy ; 20v;g
09CICISo NICE T1S801 ‘oN diysroquuapy
012247 L2HLID T
paAIn - Bi[EAIDIRS ISUETY

it

e PO

CTO00I-M/MBPTIOT ON uoIENsSISay sty
SEEDINO2Y PaIaLIDYY

dTI0D P U S g o]

40 s10pa.21(] Jo preog My Jo Jeyeq uo pus aoyg

PaydEns aep usa2 yo prodad ano Jod sy

SjuaTURIEs TRIOURINY S JO 21Ep a1 0 porad Supodas oy Joye peumaso SABI JBY) $jUaA9 Jusnbasqns ou are sz
183UdA JunbasqRg : p aj0N

1207 TdV 1 woxy 2AT0aY33 £107 B0V sareditioD) ay) 03 Ty o[npayog
PRpUatle 313 Jo sjustwanbal oy yim A1dwod of sopio UF HoHeaIsse[a §,potad JUSIMO (ks WIU03 0f AI8ssaosy quEmaoohu_ﬁ.snavowmmmﬂoo.ﬁ.m%okmﬂﬁg o%bwbnﬁs:au::oﬁﬁm

ssaaneaedmo] : 9p sjoy

1961 1OV Xe] swoau] i Jo sto1s1A01d J0RAS[A1 131J0 Aue 10 AsAms 10 YoIeas S8 yous) {941 WY

‘3L [eoueny oy Fupnp AousIme) A Io ousnmg o141y w pajsaaur 1o papen jou sey] Aueduoy ayy (an)

“pouad A1oime)s ap puodeg J0Y WM parisiar aq o) 1ok st gompm UONIBYSRES JO S9FINYD At 2AEY J0U Sa0p Kwedwoyy oy (1

330 Yonys saruedwoes wmim Suofousuel AR aABY J0U S30p Auedwmoyy sty (1)

“Apadoad ueueg Aur Fuiptoy 107 Areduroy) arp isurede Buipuad 1o pavenrur u32q seyy Butpasooid Awe ateym “Aradord umRLag AU aARy Jou sa0p Aredwory sy (1)
HHONEULIOLUY AI0IRING 19130} : S j0p]
(Styery W soadmy werpuyy Aowarmny)

CTOT Y240 [ ¢ Jo s
{panunuo)) syuouoye)s [elouRUl 91) 03 530N

PO SeAlld s1odojess(] ferorswuroy) poom3ef]




